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The Seaborn M. Shankle House is an 1840s plain-style structure with an 
1870s Italianate addition. The house and family cemetery are located on 1.3 
acres of land.

The main portion of the Seaborn M. Shankle House was built in the late 
1870s as an addition to the west end of an earlier structure. It is a two- 
story, square building with Italianate ornamentation. It has a low-pitch roof 
and wide, overhanging eaves with decorative brackets. The front door, located 
in the center of the front facade, is flanked with sidelights. One window is 
placed on each side of the front entrance. At the second-story level, three 
windows are placed directly above the first-story windows and front.,door. A 
one-story porch with low-pitch roof spj&rte the front facade of the house. The 
side porch was added at a later date by Mrs. Victoria Shankle.

The interior has a four-over-four-with-central-hall floor plan. The 
first-floor rooms contain picture molding and have plastered ceilings. The 
second-story rooms are void of such molding and have wood ceilings. Several 
closet doors on the second floor have wood-grain designs painted on them. Two 
interior fireplaces are located in the house but have not been used since the 
installation of a gas heating system.

The original structure, attached to the rear of the Italianate structure, 
was built in the late'1840s. The plain-style structure has one interior fire­ 
place. This structure has two rooms and a screened porch. It presently serves 
as the kitchen for the Shankle house.

Modern conveniences were added to the house as they became available. The 
fireplaces were closed when gas heating came into general use. The house was 
divided into apartments for a short time in the 1940s, but has'been returned to 
its original design.

Also located on the property is a smokehouse that is believed to have been 
built at the same time as the Italianate addition to the plain-style structure. 
It is presently vacant. Located to the rear of the house is the Shankle family 
cemetery. It contains ten to twelve graves. The builder of the Shankle house, 
Seaborn M. Shankle, and other members of his family are buried here. The ceme­ 
tery is enclosed by a cast-iron fence of nineteenth-century design.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Seaborn M. Shankle House is significant to the architectural and com­ 
mercial history of Harmony Grove, now Commerce, Georgia. It is an example of 
how rural people created a simplified version of the Italianate style of archi­ 
tecture'. The builder of the house,• Seaborn'M. Shankle, was a contributing fac­ 
tor in the growth of commercial activity in Harmony Grove and was a prominent 
member of Harmony Grove society.

The design of the Seaborn M. Shankle House employs features of recent 
architectural trends but displays a reluctance to abandon traditional archi­ 
tectural styles altogether. The exterior of the house is adorned with features 
associated with the Italianate style of architecture, such as dentils and brac­ 
kets. The inteior, however, employs the traditional early- to mid-nineteenth- 
century floor plan, rather than a floor plan corresponding to the Italianate 
style. Also characteristic of traditional styles is the appending of the new 
structure upon an older house. The older ^ect^on of the house has some intrin­ 
sic value in that it is an example of earlier building techniques. u

The builder of the plain-style house and the Italianate addition of the 
Shankle House, Seaborn M. Shankle (1825-1885), was the youngest,son of Eli 
Shankle. Eli (1784-1852) was one of three pioneers to settle in the area that 
developed into Harnupny Grove in 1808. The Shankle family acquired extensive 
land holdings in the area, and it was from this extensive property that Seaborn 
chose to build his home and mercantile business. He was involved in the eco­ 
nomic development of Harmony Grove and was a contributing member of the commun­ 
ity.

Seaborn M. Shankle was instrumental in establishing commercial activity 
in Harmony Grove, owning and operating one of the first mercantile establish­ 
ments in the area. He was involved in two short-lived mercantile business 
partnerships before he began to operate his own business in the early 1850s. 
His business was located across from his home on the Athens-Clarkesvilie Road, 
a main thoroughfare through Harmony Grove. His shelves were stocked with gro­ 
ceries, notions, dry goods, and plantation supplies. After the Civil War, 
Shankle built a two-story, wooden building in which he operated his thriving 
business. He was engaged in business at this place until his death in 1885.

[continued]
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To increase commercial activity in Harmony Grove, Seaborn M. Shankle was 
involved in securing the Northeastern Railroad line for Harmony Grove. The 
location of the railroad was contingent upon the subscription of stock and of 
securing a right-of-way. Two locations for the line were considered: Harmony 
Grove and a rival town, Jefferson, the county seat. By the endorsement of 
large amounts of stock for the railroad, Shankle and two other prominent mem­ 
bers of Harmony Grove society, C.W. Hood and Dr. W.B.J. Hardman, enabled their 
community to become the location of the railroad. After the railroad was com­ 
pleted from Athens to Lula in 1876, Harmony Grove became one of the leading 
commercial communities in the area. Commercial growth was so great that, in 
order to reflect the commercial success of the town, Harmony Grove citizens 
changed the name of their community to Commerce in 1904. The railroad, bought 
by the Southern Railway System in 1899, continues to serve the citizens of 
Commerce. Commercial development might have been lessened had it not been for 
the endorsement of the railroad stock.

After Seaborn Shankle's death in 1885, his wife, Mrs. Victoria P. Shankle, 
continued to operate the mercantile business for a short time. After her death 
in 1917, the house and other Shankle property were sold at public auction, as 
stipulated in her will. Her son, Andrew M. Shankle, bought the family house.

Andrew M. Shankle (1874-1944) worked with the railroad in Commerce in his 
early career. He was also involved in farming, and eventually became involved 
in the Northeastern Bank. He retired from the banking business several years 
before his death in 1944, and the Shankle House became the property of his 
daughter, Mrs. Ruth Shankle Westbrook.

Mrs. Westbrook and her family lived in the Seaborn M. Shankle House until 
1963. Her son, Lloyd Westbrook Jr., and his family lived in the house until 
the summer of 1976, at which time the house was sold to its present owner, Mrs. 
Bonita R. Kenny. Mrs. Kenny plans to use the house as an overnight inn, while 
maintaining its integrity.
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